Vislink Technologies, Inc. Code of Ethics and Business Conduct



Table of Contents

Introduction
Our Commitment: The "Vislink Mindset"
Compliance
Disclosure
Business Integrity
Bribery
Gifts, entertainment, and hospitality
Fair competition and commitment to customers
Confidentiality
Conflicts of interest
Protection and proper use of company assets
Human Rights / Labor Standards
Our employees
Diversity
Health and Safety
Environmental Sustainability
Political Neutrality
Business Partners
Agents, representatives, and sub-contractors
Our suppliers
Charitable Donations

Introduction

Vislink Technologies, Inc. ("Vislink" or the "Company" or "we" or "our") has adopted this Code of Ethics and Business Conduct (this "Code") to:

- (a) Promote honest and ethical conduct, including, without limitation, the ethical handling of actual or apparent conflicts of interest between personal and professional relationships;
- (b) Promote full, fair, accurate, timely, and understandable disclosure in reports and documents that the Company files with, or submits to, the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") and in other public communications made on behalf of the Company;
- (c) Promote compliance with applicable governmental laws, rules, and regulations;
- (d) Promote the safeguarding of the Company's assets, including, but not limited to, the protection of confidential information and the non-usurpation of corporate opportunities;
- (e) Promote fair dealing practices;
- (f) Deter wrongdoing; and
- (g) Promote accountability for adherence to this Code.

All directors, officers, and employees of the Company should be familiar with this Code and perform their duties in accordance with the Company's statements or commitments relating to the principles of corporate ethics described in this Code.

All directors, officers, and employees of the Company are expected to comply with legal and other requirements, including, but not limited to, the rules and regulations promulgated by the SEC, such as the business and financial disclosure requirements of Regulation S-K and Regulation S-X, respectively; the Marketplace Rules of The Nasdaq Stock Market LLC ("Nasdaq"); the U.S. Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, as amended ("SOX"); and the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act of 1977, as amended (the "FCPA"). As stated above, the Company has, in part, adopted this Code to promote compliance with applicable governmental laws, rules, and regulations. Therefore, all directors, officer, and employees should follow all policies and procedures described in this Code to comply with legal and other requirements.

Consistent with the provisions of this Code, all directors, officers, and employees of the Company must promptly report any suspected violations of this Code, as described below in the "Reporting and Enforcement" provision.

Certain provisions of this Code shall be deemed to constitute the code of ethics for the Company's principal executive officer, principal financial officer, principal accounting officer or controller, or persons performing similar functions within the meaning of Sections 406 and 407 of SOX and the rules of the SEC promulgated thereunder. Such provisions are as follows:

- (a) the "Compliance" provision;
- (b) the "Disclosure" provision;
- (c) the prompt internal reporting to an appropriate person (as identified in the "Reporting and Enforcement" provision) of violations of this Code;
- (d) the written standard that is reasonably designed to deter wrongdoing and to promote honest and ethical conduct, including the ethical handling of actual or apparent conflicts of interest between personal and professional relationships (as stated in the preamble to the "Business Integrity" provision); and
- (e) the written standard that is reasonably designed to deter wrongdoing and to promote accountability for adherence to this Code (as stated in this "Introduction" provision).

Such rules also require us to promptly disclose amendments to, and waivers from, the foregoing provisions of this Code insofar as they relate to any of the applicable officers.

Our Commitment: The "Vislink Mindset"

Vislink provides vital products and services that support the transmission and reception of exceptional images and information. Our commitment to providing such products and services to customers across industries is founded on a set of core values that form the "Vislink Mindset":

- **Product excellence** everything we make and do is exceptional
- Creative solutions we are constantly looking to break new ground
- Integrity what you see is what you get
- **Customer focus** we are nothing without our customers
- Collaboration we work better when we work together

In addition to these core values, the "Vislink Mindset" reflects the Company's unwavering interest in promoting a robust culture of compliance, which, among other things, incentivizes compliance with relevant law, as described below in the "Compliance" provision.

Compliance

Employees, officers, and directors should comply, in letter and spirit, with all applicable laws, rules, and regulations in the cities, states, and countries in which the Company operates.

- Although not all employees, officers, and directors are expected to know the details of all
 applicable laws, rules, and regulations, the Company expects all employees, officers, and
 directors to know sufficient information to determine when to seek advice or guidance from
 appropriate individuals where necessary.
 - o Employees should seek guidance from their immediate line manager, business unit managing director, or divisional chief officer (where relevant) concerning any questions about the application of this Code to particular facts and circumstances or generally.

Vislink's compliance and ethics program includes, among other policies, the Company's policy against insider trading, whereby, among other prohibitions, no director, officer, or employee may purchase or sell any securities issued by the Company or its business partners while in possession of material nonpublic information regarding the Company or its business partners. The Company diligently enforces compliance with, and determinedly resolves any matters arising under, such policy. We must be familiar with, and comply with, internal policies and rules regarding insider trading at all times.

The principles of corporate ethics described in this Code are endorsed by the Company's board of directors and apply to all "Group member companies." It is the responsibility of senior management of the Company to ensure that this Code is disseminated and fully understood at every level across "Group member companies."

Employees who fail to abide by this Code may face disciplinary action, including dismissal.

Disclosure

The Company's periodic reports and other documents filed with, or submitted to, the SEC, including all financial statements and other financial information, must comply with applicable federal securities laws and SEC rules promulgated thereunder.

Each director, officer, and employee who contributes in any way to the preparation, and verification, of Vislink's financial statements and other financial information must ensure that Vislink's books, records, and accounts are accurately maintained. In addition, each director, officer, and employee must cooperate fully with the Company's accounting and internal audit departments as well as the Company's independent public accountants and counsel.

Each director, officer, and employee who is involved in the Company's disclosure process must:

- (a) be familiar with and comply with the Company's disclosure controls and procedures and its internal control over financial reporting; and
- (b) take all necessary steps to ensure that all filings with the SEC and all other public communications about the financial and business condition of the Company provide full, fair, accurate, timely, and understandable disclosure.

Business Integrity

The Company's policy is to promote standards of business integrity by conducting its affairs honestly and ethically.

Each director, officer, and employee should act with integrity and observe the highest ethical standards of commercial conduct in their dealings with the Company's customers, suppliers, partners, service providers, competitors, employees, and anyone else with whom they have contact with in the course of performing their job.

Additionally, each director, officer, and employee should deal fairly with the Company's customers, suppliers, partners, service providers, competitors, employees, and anyone else with whom they have contact with in the course of performing their job. Specifically, no director, officer, or employee may take unfair advantage of anyone through manipulation, concealment, abuse of privileged information, misrepresentation of facts, or any other unfair dealing practice.

We expect our partners to abide by principles of corporate ethics that are compatible with our own.

Bribery

Vislink abides by all applicable national and international anti-bribery or anti-corruption laws in the countries where we operate. Vislink does not tolerate bribery or corruption of any kind, such as the making of bribes, the receipt of bribes, undue payments, or kickbacks in any form (whether direct or indirect, *i.e.*, those payments made through third parties with knowledge that all or part of such payments would be passed on to a foreign official).

For instance, the Company maintains internal controls and procedures to comply with the FCPA, which governs the worldwide activities of U.S. companies and their employees. In general, the FCPA prohibits offering, paying, promising to pay, or authorizing payment of money, gifts, or *anything of value* to a foreign official: (i) to influence any act or decision by the official; (ii) to induce the official to use his or her influence to affect any act or decision; or (iii) to seek any improper advantage to assist the company in obtaining or retaining business.

"Anything of value" includes more than cash or cash equivalents. It can include the payment of travel expenses; providing services, outings, or other entertainment not customary to a particular transaction in our business; assumption or forgiveness of debt; personal favors; offers of employment; and possibly charitable donations.

- Normal business entertainment expenses directly tied to a legitimate business purpose, and nominal gifts, e.g., small gifts with our corporate logo, are generally acceptable under the FCPA.
- However, excessive marketing expenses, including lavish entertainment and travel given in return for obtaining or retaining business, might be deemed violations of the FCPA.

The Company's policy prohibiting the making and receipt of, or the promise to make or authorization of, bribes to a foreign official includes a prohibition on so-called facilitation payments, which are bribes with low financial value paid to officials to illegally facilitate routine governmental action for obtaining or retaining business.

Gifts, entertainment, and hospitality

We prohibit the offer or receipt of gifts or gratuities that could induce a breach of trust or impartiality on the part of the recipient, influence any business decision or lead to improper business advantage, influence any act or decision of a governmental official, or induce a governmental official to affect any such act or decision. The Company's policy against improper gifts or gratuities applies to our relationships with suppliers, governmental officials, and any third party with whom we have dealings with in the normal course of business and otherwise.

Employees may not, under any circumstances, offer or accept gifts or gratuities worth more than \$100 or the equivalent without the prior written approval from their immediate line manager, business unit managing director, or divisional chief officer (where applicable).

Employees may offer and accept reasonable gifts or hospitality in the normal course of business; provided, however, that employees must, in all cases, ensure that reasonable gifts or hospitality are offered or accepted as an expression of goodwill and not offered or accepted in expectation of reciprocal favor.

- Gifts and hospitality are typically considered reasonable if, for instance, their provision, or receipt, are of modest value; they are reasonable in scope; and they are not given or received in expectation of or as an award for obtaining or retaining business, or as a means of inducing a breach of trust or impartiality on the part of the recipient.
 - The provision or receipt of business courtesies such as reasonable gifts or hospitality should not cloud business or official governmental judgments, or, more practically, give the appearance of any conflicts of interest.

Fair competition and commitment to customers

We compete fairly and honestly and comply with all applicable national antitrust and competition laws and regulations of each country and region where we conduct business. Such laws and regulations are designed to proscribe agreements or practices that fix prices, divide markets, limit production, or otherwise impede fair competition in markets as understood in a particular jurisdiction. Certain countries enforce these laws against activities taking place outside their countries if the activities affect their markets.

It is the Company's policy to be truthful in advertising our products and services and in soliciting business. It is also the Company's policy to not make false or misleading statements about our competitors' products and services.

In addition, we aim to offer products and services that are safe, reliable, innovative, and relevant to our customers' needs.

We treat all customer complaints seriously and aim to resolve all customer complaints in a timely, friendly, and professional manner.

Confidentiality

Directors, officers, and employees should maintain the confidentiality of information entrusted to them by the Company or by its customers, suppliers, or partners, except when disclosure is expressly authorized or is required or permitted by operation of law.

Confidential information includes all nonpublic information (regardless of its source) that might be of use to the Company's competitors or harmful to the Company or its customers, suppliers, or partners if it were to be disclosed.

Except as otherwise provided within a legally valid covenant bargained for in a binding confidentiality agreement entered into by and between the Company and a director, officer or employee of the Company, all directors, officers and employees of the Company should abide by this Code at all times in respect to confidentiality matters.

This Code should not be interpreted as restraining an employee's ability to report suspected wrongdoing to the SEC per the whistleblower protection provisions in Rule 21F-17 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

Conflicts of interest

Vislink's directors, officers, and employees must avoid actual and perceived conflicts of interest with the Company.

Under this Code, a conflict of interest is deemed to occur when an individual's private interest (or the interest of a member of his or her family, which ordinarily means any child, stepchild, parent, stepparent, spouse, sibling, mother-in-law, father-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, brother-in-law, or sister-in-law) interferes, or appears to interfere, with the interests of the Company as a whole.

Under this Code, a conflict of interest may arise when an employee, officer, or director (or a member of his or her family) takes actions, or has interests, that may make it unreasonably difficult to perform his or her work on behalf of the Company objectively and effectively. Conflicts of interest also arise when an employee, officer, or director (or a member of his or her family) receives improper personal benefits as a result of his or her position in the Company.

The Company separately maintains a related party transaction policy, which sets forth additional mechanisms that govern the approval and review processes, among other things, relating to certain transactions to be effected by certain persons affiliated with the Company. Loans by the Company to, or guarantees by the Company of obligations of, employees, or their immediate family members, are of heightened concern and could constitute improper personal benefits to the recipients of such loans or guarantees, depending on the facts and circumstances.

• Under the applicable requirements of SOX, extensions of credit by the Company to, or guarantees by the Company of obligations of, any director or executive officer are expressly prohibited by the Company.

Whether or not a conflict of interest exists or will exist can be unclear. Conflicts of interest should be avoided unless specifically authorized, as described in the below paragraphs of this provision.

Persons other than directors and executive officers who have questions about a potential conflict of interest, or who become aware of an actual or potential conflict, should discuss the matter with, and seek a determination and prior authorization or approval from, their supervisor (such as their immediate line manager, business unit managing director, or divisional chief officer (where applicable)), or another employee delegated with appropriate approval authority by the Company's board of directors or executive officers from time to time.

- A supervisor may not authorize or approve conflict of interest matters or make determinations as to whether a possible conflict of interest exists without first providing the Company's board of directors or an executive officer of the Company (as applicable) with a written description of the activity and seeking the board of directors' or the executive officer's written approval.
- If the supervisor is, or is believed to be, involved in the potential or actual conflict, then, the matter should instead be discussed with the board of directors or an executive officer of the Company (as applicable).

Directors and executive officers must in all cases seek determinations and prior authorizations or approvals of potential conflicts of interest exclusively from the Audit Committee of the board of directors.

Protection and proper use of company assets

All directors, officers, and employees should protect the Company's assets and ensure their efficient use. Theft, carelessness, and waste have a direct impact on the Company's profitability and are prohibited by the Company.

All of Vislink's assets should be used only for legitimate business purposes and not for personal benefit; provided, however, that incidental personal use may be permitted if authorized in advance by an employee's immediate line manager, business unit managing director, or divisional chief officer (where applicable).

Any suspected incident of fraud or theft should be reported for investigation immediately.

Each director, officer, and employee's obligation to protect the Company's assets includes the Company's proprietary information.

- Proprietary information includes, without limitation, intellectual property, such as trade secrets, patents, trademarks, and copyrights, as well as business and marketing plans, engineering and manufacturing ideas, designs, databases, records, and any nonpublic financial data or reports.
- Unauthorized use or distribution of proprietary information is prohibited and could be illegal and result in civil or criminal penalties.

Corporate opportunities

All directors, officers, and employees owe a duty to Vislink to advance Vislink's interests when an opportunity presented to the Company arises. It is the Company's policy that directors, officers, and employees are prohibited from taking for themselves personally (or for the benefit of friends or immediate family members) opportunities that are discovered through the use of the Company's assets, property, information, or position. Directors, officers, and employees may not use the Company's assets,

property, information, or position for personal financial gain (including personal financial gain of friends or immediate family members). In addition, no director, officer, or employee may compete with the Company unless the Company's board of directors has authorized in advance that which may be reasonably believed to constitute behavior that is competition with the Company.

Human Rights / Labor Standards

In accordance with our commitment to the Universal Declaration of Human Rights, we support and respect internationally recognized labor rights, including freedom of association, the avoidance of discrimination, the abolition of forced labor, and the abolition of child labor. We expect the same commitment on the part of our suppliers.

In particular, Vislink will not use any form of forced or involuntary labor where people are coerced to work against their will, including forced labor to work off a debt, prison labor, or human trafficking. In addition, Vislink will not use child labor. "Child" means a person younger than 15 years old (or younger than 14 years old where a local law provides for a lower age) or the local legal minimum age for labor, if it is higher.

Our employees

Vislink is committed to fair treatment of its employees. Vislink's employees can expect competitive pay and special rewards for extraordinary work or performance. Vislink will invest in the personal growth of its employees with appropriate training and will aim to offer stable employment in the communities where we are based.

In conformance with applicable local laws and regulations, we do not interfere with the right of all workers to form and join trade unions of their own choosing, to bargain collectively and to engage in peaceful assembly. We also respect the right of workers to refrain from any such activities.

Vislink respects employees' right to privacy and life outside of the workplace.

Vislink's employees should not engage in conduct that may reasonably be perceived as offensive, objectionable, harassing, or disrespectful to other employees, suppliers, customers, or any other stakeholder with whom we interact. Vislink is committed to maintaining a healthy, safe, and productive work environment that is free from any discrimination or harassment, in which all individuals are treated with respect and dignity. We do not tolerate any kind of discrimination or harassment, including sexual harassment, bullying or other behaviors that create a hostile work environment.

Diversity

Vislink is committed to equality of opportunity in all its employment practices, procedures, and policies and complies with all relevant law relating to equal employment opportunity and non-discrimination. When we hire someone, we choose the best candidate, irrespective of age, race, national origin, disability, religion, gender, sexual preference, or membership/non-membership of any trade union.

Health and Safety

Vislink attaches the greatest importance to the health and safety of its employees and complies with all relevant laws and regulations governing health and safety in the workplace. The Company also adheres to internal rules and policies to help ensure workplace safety.

Environmental Sustainability

We strive to minimize the impact of our products and services on the environment and on the communities in which we operate. Vislink recognizes the significance of preserving the environmental commons and endeavors to evaluate and implement corporate programs that meet or possibly exceed legal requirements and considers environmental impact as one key criterion when evaluating projects or potential relationships with business partners.

Political Neutrality

Vislink does not make donations to political parties nor to any cause that might cause reputation harm to local business units or any of the "Group member companies."

Business Partners

Vislink works with various business partners, including agents, representatives, consultants, subcontractors, and suppliers. Vislink is committed to the principles of fairness and excellence in our dealings with our business partners and expects the same commitment from them.

Agents, representatives, and sub-contractors

We select agents, representatives, and sub-contractors based on their professional expertise and not on account of personal contacts or any undue influence. For instance, all relationships with agents and distributors are governed by legally enforceable, written agreements, which set forth the services to be rendered and the structure of fees, among other terms; include an express prohibition on bribery; and condition such relationships upon compliance with the provisions of this Code.

The fees and commissions agreed among Vislink and its business partners are appropriate and justifiable remuneration for legitimate business services rendered. Divisional chief officers review all commission arrangements in advance prior to the execution of binding agreements. Commission payments worth more than 10 percent of a binding contract's value are subject to advance approval by the "Group Chief Executive."

Our suppliers

We aim to develop long-term relationships with our suppliers and expect them to make a fair return on the investments they have made in doing business with us. Vislink selects its suppliers on the basis of competitive price, quality, delivery, and other objective standards, and we expect our suppliers to adhere

to our ethical values as expressed in the provisions of this Code and to comply with applicable Vislink polices concerning compliance with laws, respect for human rights, fair labor and employment practices, environmental conservation, and the safety of products and services.

Charitable Donations

As part of its corporate citizenship activities, Vislink and its employees may donate time and money to a variety of local and international charitable organizations, particularly those charitable organizations that support children, personal development, or media-related causes or themes.

We apply the same standards of professionalism in our charitable donations as we do with our business partnerships. We provide donations to charitable organizations that serve a legitimate public purpose and are subject to high standards of transparency and accountability. Our contributions are properly documented. All charitable donations are documented and reported on an annual basis at year end to the "Group Company Secretary." Any charitable donation in excess of \$1,000 USD (or local currency equivalent) is cleared in advance with the "Group Company Secretary."

Reporting and Enforcement

Reporting and investigation of violations

Actions prohibited by this Code involving directors or executive officers must be promptly reported to the Company's Audit Committee.

Actions prohibited by this Code involving anyone other than a director or executive officer must be promptly reported to the reporting person's relevant supervisor (such as the immediate line manager, business unit managing director, or divisional chief officer), or the Company's chief financial officer.

After receiving a report of an alleged prohibited action, the Audit Committee and the reporting person's relevant supervisor, or the Company's chief financial officer (if applicable), must promptly take all appropriate actions necessary to investigate.

All directors, officers, and employees are expected to cooperate in any internal investigation of misconduct.

Enforcement

The Company must ensure prompt and consistent action against violations of this Code.

If, after investigating a report of an alleged prohibited action by a director or executive officer, the Audit Committee determines that a violation of this Code has occurred, then, the Audit Committee will report such determination to the Company's board of directors.

If, after investigating a report of an alleged prohibited action by anyone other than a director or executive officer, the reporting person's relevant supervisor (or the Company's chief financial officer if applicable)

determines that a violation of this Code has occurred, then, such supervisor (or the Company's chief financial officer if applicable) will report such determination to an executive officer that is delegated by the Company's board of directors with the authority to handle enforcement matters (and is deemed to be the chief financial officer if the chief financial officer investigated a report of an alleged prohibited action by anyone other than a director or executive officer in the first place), which will promptly seek the advice of legal counsel of the Company.

Upon receipt of a determination that there has been a violation of this Code, the Company's board of directors, upon due consideration of the advice of legal counsel, will take such preventative or disciplinary action as it deems appropriate, including, but not limited to, reassignment, demotion, dismissal, and, in the event of criminal conduct or other serious violations of the law, notification of appropriate governmental authorities.

Waivers

Each of the board of directors or a committee of the board of directors, in the case of a violation by a director or executive officer, and the Company's general counsel, if any, in the case of a violation by any other person, may, in its discretion, waive any violation of this Code.

We must publicly disclose any waiver for a director or an executive officer as required by SEC and Nasdaq rules.

"Waiver" means the approval by the Company of a material departure from a provision of this Code. "Implicit waiver" means our failure to take action within a reasonable period of time regarding a material departure from a provision of this Code that has been made known to an executive officer of the Company.

Prohibition against retaliation

In no event does the Company tolerate acts of retaliation against any director, officer, or employee of the Company who makes a good-faith report of known, or suspected, acts of misconduct, which may constitute violations of this Code. Anyone who reports a good-faith report will be treated fairly and respectfully.